
 

PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 
 
 DATE:   January 14, 2013 

 
 TIME:   4:30 p.m. 
 

PRESENT: Commissioners Boettcher, Gromek, English, Ballard, Hahn, 
Davis, Buelow, and Olson 

 
ABSENT: Chairperson Porter  
 

STAFF PRESENT: City Planner, Mark Moeller; Assistant City Planner, Carlos 
Espinosa 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 
The meeting was called to order at 4:30 p.m. by Acting Chairperson Gromek. 
 
Approval of Minutes – December 10, 2012 
 
The minutes for December 10, 2012 were approved without changes upon motion by 
Commissioner Davis and second by Commissioner Ballard.   
 
Discussion – Proposed Amendment to Code Section 43.54.1 (Bed & Breakfast 
and Tourist Homes) 
 
City Planner Mark Moeller presented the agenda item and explained the history of the 
“Bed and Breakfast/Tourist Home” ordinance in the zoning code.  Mr. Moeller stated 
that a request has been received by a citizen to expand the ordinance to the R-R 
(Rural-Residential) District.  In addressing this request, a number of questions surface, 
some of which include: 
 

• Would approval such a concept compromise the intent and purpose of this “low 
density” R-R residential district? 

• Could such a concept work if its scope (i.e.: number of guest rooms) was limited 
to one or two units, or by location? 

• Should the concept, again, in a limited form, be permitted within all low density 
single family, and Agricultural Districts? 

• Does such use benefit the Community as a whole? 
 
Mr. Moeller explained that the citizen who made the request (Amy Redepenning) was 
present and could help answer questions.  
 
Acting Chairperson Gromek asked about the difference between bed and breakfasts 
and tourist homes.  Mr. Moeller responded that tourist homes do not provide food. 
 
Commissioner Davis asked about Ms. Redepenning’s request.  Mr. Moeller explained 
that her property is in an R-R district and currently has one tourist home unit attached to 
her home.  The unit has been allowed because of the property’s history as certified 
duplex.   



PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
JANUARY 14, 2013 
PAGE 2 
 
Ms. Redepenning stated that she is seeking to create another tourist home unit in a 
detached workshop, and City staff informed her that this would require changes to the 
zoning ordinance.  Ms. Redepenning explained that she thinks there is a need for tourist 
home units in Winona because they provide an alternative to Bed and Breakfasts. 
 
In response to various questions from Commissioners, Mr. Moeller explained that the 
current bed and breakfast ordinance was created before the annexation of Winona 
Township in 1996.  The annexation of the township brought many low-density 
agricultural and residential properties into the City. 
 
Acting Chairperson Gromek asked about the number of tourist homes that could be 
certified on a property.  Mr. Moeller explained that the intent is to maintain the low-
density character of the R-R zoning district.  As a result, the Commission could look at 
setting a limit on the number of tourist homes per property – such as 2 or 3.  Acting 
Chairperson Gromek responded that it would be important to restrict the number of 
tourist homes per property – potentially with lot size requirements. 
 
Commissioner Buelow asked if the ordinance could consider buildable vs. non-buildable 
portions of lots.  Mr. Moeller stated that was possible. 
 
Commissioner Olson stated that he didn’t have any issues with the concept of tourist 
homes, but sufficient off-street parking should be considered. 
 
Mr. Moeller stated that one consideration is whether to make tourist homes permitted 
uses or conditionally permitted uses.  The difference would be that conditional uses 
would require notification of neighbors and a public hearing.  Acting Chairperson 
Gromek stated that notification of neighbors is an important consideration. 
 
Commissioner Davis stated that a flat number such as 2 or 3 may be too small – 
especially considering that some existing properties may have 4-5 bedrooms.  Ms. 
Davis stated that it may be important to differentiate between existing and new 
structures used for tourist homes.    
 
Commissioner Hahn asked about the importance of historical significance.  Mr. Moeller 
stated that historical significance was important when the existing ordinance was 
developed in 1986 because it was primarily targeted at the re-use of larger, older 
homes. 
 
There being no further questions, the Commission directed staff to work on proposed 
ordinance changes for the next meeting. 
 
Other Business 
 
Commissioner Olson - who joined the meeting after the minutes had been approved - 
stated that the last sentence of the second paragraph on page seven of the minutes 
should be deleted.  Mr. Moeller agreed to make the change to the minutes. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
JANUARY 14, 2013 
PAGE 3 
 
Adjournment 
 
There being no further business to come before the Commission, the meeting was 
adjourned at 5:15 p.m. 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Carlos Espinosa 
Assistant City Planner 


